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BEFORE THE HEARINGS DIVISION
OFFICE OF HEARINGS & APPEALS
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
4015 WILSON BOULEVARD
ARLINGTON, VIRGINIA 22203

PACIFICORP, dba PACIFICORP
ELECTRIC OPERATIONS, and
ENERGY WEST MINING CO.,

NOTICE OF VIOLATION
NO. 91-02-244-002
COTTONWOOD/WILBERG MINE,

EMERY COUNTY, UTAH
Petitioners,

V.

COAL MINING PERMIT

OFFICE OF SURFACE MINING NO. ACT/015/019

RECLAMATION & ENFORCEMENT

PETITION FOR REVIEW AND REQUEST FOR HEARING

Pursuant to 43 C.F.R. Part 4.1100, et §ég. and 30
C.F.R. § 843.16, PacifiCorp, dba PacifiCorp Electric Operations
("PacifiCorp") and Energy West Mining Co. ("Energy West")
(jointly referred to as "Petitioner"), petition for review of the
fact of violation of Notice of Violation No. 91-02-244-002 issued
to Petitioner on June 26, 1991, and request a hearing on this
matter in Salt Lake City, Utah.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. The Utah Division of 0il, Gas & Mining ("State" or
"DOGM") issued Cottonwood/Wilberg Mine Permit No. ACT/015/019 to
Petitioner on July 6, 1989.



! .

2. On June 26, 1991, Notice of Violation No.
91-02-244-002 ("NOV") was issued by the federal Office of Surface
Mining Reclamation and Enforcement ("OSM") to PacifiCorp as per-
mittee and Energy West as operator of the Cottonwood/Wilberg
Mine, Emery County, Utah (the "Mine.") A true and correct copy
of the NOV is attached hereto as Exhibit "A."

3. The NOV was issued by OSM for Petitioner's alleged
failure to first obtain a permit from DOGM prior to engaging in
and carrying out any coal mining and reclamation operations.

This NOV applies to a portion of Utah State Highway Route 57
("State Highway 57") extending from the present permit boundary
approximately 13 miles south to the receiving scales of the Hun-
tington Preparation Plant.

4, The NOV requires the operator to reclaim State
Highway 57 within eighty (80) days or submit to DOGM a complete
and adequate plan to permit and bond the highway within thirty
(30) days of issuance of the NOV.

5. Prior to issuing the NOV, OSM issued ten day
notice No. 91-02-116-003 ("TDN") to the State, dated March 15,
1991 and received on March 18, 1991, citing Petitioner's alleged
"failure to first obtain a permit from the Division (DOGM) prior
to engaging in and carrying out any coal mining and reclamation
operations"” on State Highway 57 in violation of Utah Administra-
tive Code 614-300-112.400. A true and correct copy of the TDN is

attached as Exhibit "B."



6. DOGM declined to require the operator to include
State Highway 57 in the Cottonwood/Wilberg permit on the basis
that (1) OSM itself had found the Petitioner to be in compliance
when the Cottonwood/Wilberg permit was issued and (2) the State
could not make a public road determination until OSM approved the
State's pending public road regulations. Letter to Robert H.
Hagen dated March 27, 1991, a true and correct copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit "C."

7. Effective February 25, 1991, the Board of 0il, Gas
and Mining adopted emergency rules defining "public road" as

follows:

Public road means a road, (a) which has
been designated as a public road pursuant to
the laws of the jurisdiction which it is
located, (b) which is maintained with public
funds in a manner similar to other public
roads of the same classification within the
jurisdiction, and (c¢) which meets road con-
struction standards for other public roads of
the same classification in the local
jurisdiction.

A true and correct copy of the Board Order dated February 25,
1991 is attached hereto as Exhibit "D."

8. Although these rules were submitted by DOGM to OSM
by letter dated March 1, 1991, they were not approved as a Utah
State Program Amendment when the TDN was issued on March 15,
1991. March 27, 1991 letter, attached hereto as Exhibit "C," and
the March 1, 1991 letter, a true and correct copy of which is

attached hereto as Exhibit "D-1."



9. By letter dated March 28, 1991, the State
requested Petitioner to secure a letter from the appropriate reg-
ulatory authority concerning the public road status of State
Highway 57. A true and correct copy of the March 28, 1991 letter
is attached hereto as Exhibit "E."

10. By letter dated May 24, 1991, the Utah State
Department of Transportation ("UDOT") stated that State Highway
57 is a highway and that, "no agency, federal or state, other
than UDOT, has authority over this roadway and right of way." A
true and correct copy of the letter dated May 24, 1991 is
attached hereto as Exhibit "F."

11. The State of Utah appealed OSM's TDN to W. Hord
Tipton, OSM Deputy Director, by letter dated April 29, 1991. A
true and correct copy of the letter dated April 29, 1991 is
attached hereto as Exhibit "G."

12. By letter dated June 4, 1991, W. Hord Tipton, OSM
Deputy Director, denied the State's TDN appeal. A true and cor-
rect copy of the June 4, 1991 letter is attached hereto as
Exhibit "H."

13. By letter dated June 19, 1991, the State appealed
W. Hord Tipton's decision to Harry Snyder, Director of OSM. A
true and correct copy of the June 19, 1991 letter is attached
hereto as Exhibit "I1."

14, DOGM had received no response to this appeal as of

June 26, 1991, when the NOV was issued by OSM to Petitioner.



ARGUMENT

I. STATE HIGHWAY 57 IS A PUBLIC ROAD AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE
SURFACE COAL MINING OPERATIONS SUBJECT TO PERMIT

The NOV cites Petitioner for failure to permit State
Highway 57 pursuant to 30 C.F.R. § 773.11(a) which provides:

- « . No person shall engage in or carry out
any surface coal mining operations, unless
such person has first obtained a permit
issued by the regulatory authority . . . .
[emphasis added].

30 C.F.R. § 773.11(a) (1990). 1In addition, the NOV cites Peti-
tioner for violations of Utah Administrative Code ("U.A.C.")
614-300-112.400 (1990) which provides, ". . . all persons who

engage in and carry out any coal mining and reclamation opera-

tions will first obtain a permit from the Division . . ."
[emphasis added]. However, State Highway 57 is a public road and
therefore does not meet the definition of "surface coal mining
operations” under Section 701(28)(B) of the federal Surface Min-
ing Control and Reclamation Act ("SMCRA"), 30 U.S. Code

§$ 1291(28)(B) (1982) or "coal mining and reclamation operations”
under § 40-10-3(17)(18) of the Utah Coal Mining and Reclamation
Act ("UMCRA").

In Harman Mining Corp. v. OSMRE, 659 F.Supp. 806 (W.D.
Va. 1987), federal district Judge Williams ruled that public
roads do not constitute "surface coal mining operations™ as that
term is defined in Section 701(28)(B) of SMCRA. This ruling was
specifically confirmed and followed by the Interior Board of Land

Appeals ("IBLA") upon review of the matter on remand in Harman



Mining Corp. v. OSMRE, 110 IBLA 98 (1989), and is controlling in

this case. The regulatory context in which the NOV was issued at
the Cottonwood/Wilberg Mine is nearly identical to that arising
in Harman. Judge Williams and IBLA adopted the same criteria and
analysis to determine that a county road was a public road not
subject to permit. As in this case, OSM and state haul road pol-

icies were invalidated under Judge Flannery's ruling In re Perma-

nent Surface Mining Requlation Litigation, 320 F.Supp. 1519

(D.C.C. 1985) finding the definition of "affected area" at 30
C.F.R. § 701.5 inconsistent with the definition of "surface coal
mining operations" under Section 701(28) of SMCRA. Under the
facts in Harman, OSM had not adopted a new rule: therefore, Judge
Williams was left with no federal regulation concerning what con-
stitutes a public road. 659 F.Supp. at 810. Similarly in this
case, OSM has still neither adopted a new public road policy nor
approved Utah's emergency regulations defining public roads.

Without definition under state or federal regulatory
programs, Judge Williams looked to Section 701(28) of SMCRA which
defines "surface coal mining operations" to include:

The areas upon which [surface coal min-

ing] activities occur or where such activi-

ties disturb the natural land surface, such

areas shall also include any adjacent land

the use of which is incidental to any such

activities, all lands affected by the con-

struction of new roads or the use of existing

roads to gain access to the site of such

activities for haulage . . . . [emphasis
added].




Judge Williams rejected a literal interpretation of Section
701(28) (B) of SMCRA on the basis that:
Congress did not anticipate that opera-

tors would have to permit interstate highways

or four lane state routes nor that they would

have to permit every road used to haul coal,

whether four lane or two lane, state or

county, paved or unpaved, or even public or

private.
659 F.Supp. at 811. The strict constructionist view of Section
701(28) (B) of SMCRA was rejected in favor of an examination of
the evidence in the record regarding whether the County roads in
question were public roads. 659 F.Supp. at 812. Judge Williams
reviewed the record to determine public use of the roads, use of
public money to construct, improve and maintain the roads and
unrestricted access of the public to the roads. In addition,
Judge Williams looked to state and county law in determining
whether the roads are public. 659 F.Supp. 812. The IBLA closely
followed Judge Williams' analysis in making a public road deter-

mination resulting from remand of this issue to the U.S. Depart-

ment of the Interior. Harman Mining Corp. v. OSMRE, 110 IBLA 98.

Due to the similarity in factual and regulatory contexts between
Harman and this matter, the public road criteria adopted therein
controls the determination in this case.

Under the public road criteria developed by Judge
Williams in Harman, State Highway 57 clearly constitutes a public
road which is not subject to permit under SMCRA or UCMRA. The
May 24, 1991 letter from UDOT establishes the public road status

of State Highway.57. The letter confirms that the road was



designated as a state route on October 15, 1982 and is a UDOT
state federal aid highway constructed in accordance with UDOT and
AASHTO road standards. Id. An average of $50,000 in public rev-
enue is annually expended on maintaining State Highway 57. Id.
Finally, UDOT states that, "no agency, federal or state, other
than UDOT, has authority over this roadway and right of way."

In sum, under the public road criteria set forth by
Judge Williams in Harman as confirmed and followed by the IBLA,
State Highway 57 is used by the public, maintained with public
funds and is outside the jurisdiction and control of the Peti-
tioner. Therefore, Petitioner respectfully requests that the NOV

requiring, permitting and/or reclamation of State Highway 57 be

vacated in its entirety.

II. THE STATE OF UTAH HAS TAKEN APPROPRIATE ACTION IN RESPONSE
TO THE TDN

OSM has inappropriately issued the NOV over the objec-
tion of the state regulatory authority after the State took
appropriate action in response to the TDN. The State determined
that no enforcement action was appropriate in response to the
TDN. The IBLA will vacate a notice of violation where the record
establishes that the action of the state was "appropriate" under

the specific facts of the case. Harman Mining Corp. v. OSMRE,

110 IBLA 98 (1989); Turner Brothers Inc. v. OSMRE, 99 IBLA 87

(1987). 1In Harman Mining Corp. v. OSMRE, 110 IBLA 98 (1989), the

IBLA determined that the State of Virginia had taken appropriate

action in response to OSM's TDN regarding the permitting of a



county road. In that case, the State of Virginia determined that
the county road was a public road not subject to permitting and,
therefore, took no enforcement action under the TDN. On remand
of the OSM's subsequent NOV, the IBLA applied the public road

criteria developed in Harman Mining Corp. v. OSMRE, 659 F.Supp.

806 (W.D. Va. 1987), and determined that the state action in
response to the TDN was appropriate, thereby vacating OSM's sub-
sequent NOV,.

Similarly, in this case in responding to OSM's TDN, the
State of Utah indicated that no enforcement action against Peti-
tioner was appropriate. See DOGM letter dated March 27, 1991
attached hereto as Exhibit "C." The State responded to the TDN
by noting that OSM had found Petitioner to be in compliance with
State and federal law upon review and issuance of the
Cottonwood/Wilberg Permit. Id. Pages 11.1 and 11.2 from the
approved Cottonwood/Wilberg Mining and Reclamation Plan ("MRP")
attached to the letter of March 27, 1991 Specifically reference
"State Road 57" and find the Petitioner's operations in compli-
ance with the Utah State Program. The State also asserted that
OSM's TDN was untimely due to the fact that the State had adopted
public road definitions and policies submitted to OSM for
approval and OSM approval was pending at the time the TDN was
issued. I1d. OSM upheld the TDN over the protest of the State by
letter dated June 4, 1991, attached hereto as Exhibit "G." How-
ever, DOGM did query the Petitioner regarding the status of State

Highway 57 pursuant to the criteria adopted in its emergency rule



making. The response receiyed by DOGM clearly corroborates a
finding that State Highway 57 is a public road not subject to
permit under DOGM's program. Letter dated May 24, 1991 from
UDOT, attached hereto as Exhibit "F." Therefore, the State's
action was appropriate in response to the TDN, the NOV was inap-
propriately issued and should be vacated.

III. NEITHER DOGM NOR OSM HAS JURISDICTION OVER EMERY COUNTY
ROAD NO. 304

Correspondence in the record from UDOT confirms that
State Highway 57 is a state route maintained by UDOT. Letter
dated May 24, 1991 from UDOT. Pursuant to Utah Code Ann.
§$ 27-12-11, state roads are within the exclusive jurisdiction and
control of the Utah State Road Cqmmission:

27-12-21. State Highways - Class A State
Roads. All roads and streets within the
state which, by 1eglslét1ve action or as oth-
erwise prov1ded by law, are designated as
state highways shall be known as class A
state roads. The State Road Commission shall
have jurisdiction and control over all state
highways and said highways shall be con-
structed and maintained by the commission
from funds which shall be made available for
that purpose.

Furthermore, under Utah's statutory rules of construc-
tion, the term "highway" is equivalent to the word "state road."
Utah Code Ann. § 68-3-12.

In addition to these provisions of state law, it is
clear that reclamation of a state highway under the terms
required by the NOV is inconsistent with public policy. Neither

Petitioner, OSM or DOGM has jurisdiction or authority to

- 10 -



dismantle and reclaim State Highway 57. 1In this regard, OSM's
NOV is arbitrary and capricious, in bad faith and may constitute
grounds for recovery of Petitioner's attorneys' fees and costs.

In sum, under Utah State law and sound public policy,
neither Petitioner, OSM nor DOGM have jurisdiction or authority
to permit and/or reclaim State Highway 57. Therefore, the NOV
must be vacated.
IV. THE NOV IS BARRED BY THE APPLICABLE STATUTES OF LIMITATION

The NOV alleges that Petitioner is in violation of
UCMRA and implementing rules at U.A.C. 614-300-112.400 and of
SMCRA and implementing rules at 30 C.F.R. § 773.11(a). The NOV
is, however, barred under the applicable statutes of limitation
of both state and federal law. 1In enforcing Utah law, OSM is
subject to the two year statute of limitations applicable to
UMCRA. Pursuant to Section 40-8-9(2) of UMCRA:

No suit, action or other proceeding

based upon a violation of this chapter or any

rule or order issued under this chapter may

be commenced or maintained unless the suit,

action or proceeding is commenced within two

years of the date of the alleged violation.
This two year statute of limitations is incorporated into UCMRA
pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 40-10-4. The applicable statute of
limitations for enforcing violations under SMCRA is set forth at
28 U.S.C. § 2462 as "five years from the date when the claim
first accrued.”

State Highway 57 has been recognized as a public road

by OSM during the permitting and re-permitting of the

- 11 -



Cottonwood/Wilberg Mine. Judge Flannery entered his decision in

In re Permanent Surface Mining Requlation Litigation, 620 F.Supp.

1519 (D.C.C. 1985), remanding 30 C.F.R. § 701.5 and finding OSM's
public road policy to be inconsistent with Section 701(28) of
SMCRA. Therefore, under OSM's interpretation of SMCRA, as set
forth in the June 26, 1991 NOV, Petitioner has been in violation
of state and federal law since Judge Flannery's ruling in 1985.
However, OSM did not issue its NOV in this matter for some six

years following the ruling in In re Permanent Surface Mining Reg-

ulation Litigation. During this period, the Cottonwood/Wilberg
permit was reviewed by state and federal requlatory authorities
and reissued effective July 6, 1989. Therefore, the NOV issued
more than six years from the date of the alleged violation, is
barred by the applicable statutes of limitation under both state
and federal law and must be vacated in its entirety.
V. THE NOV IS BARRED BY WAIVER, ESTOPPEL AND LACHES

If for some reason the NOV is not barred by the statute
of limitations under state and federal law, the NOV is barred by
the common law doctrines of waiver, estoppel and laches. Since
enactment of SMCRA in 1977 until the recent issuance of the NOV,
OSM has consistently found that State Highway 57 is a public road
not subject to the permitting or regulatory requirements of SMCRA
or UCMRA. Letter dated March 27, 1991, attached hereto as
Exhibit "C." O0SM did not find State Highway 57 to be a surface
coal mining operation when the Cottonwood/Wilberg permit was

reviewed by state and federal regulatory authorities and reissued

- 12 -



effective July 6, 1989. The State relied on OSM's determination
of the operator's compliance in issuing the Cottonwood/Wilberg
permit to Petitioner. This reliance resulted in issuance of a
TDN, to the detriment of DOGM. Therefore, OSM is now estopped
from issuing either the TDN or the subsequent NOV.

A period of more than six years has passed since Judge

Flannery's ruling in In Re Permanent Surface Mining Requlation

Litigation, 320 F.Supp. 519 (D.C.C. 1985). During the six year
period of time since that ruling, OSM failed to promulgate a reg-
ulation regarding public roads. However, OSM has adopted a pol-
icy regarding State Highway 57. OSM approved reissuance of the
Cottonwood/Wilberg permit on February 7, 1986 without requiring
regulation of State Highway 57. Therefore, OSM has eiﬁher waived
regulation of State Highway 57 or has applied a policy of
non-regulation for sufficient length of time that it is now
barred by waiver or laches from issuing the NOV.

For the reasons stated above, Petitioner requests the

Office of Hearings & Appeals to vacate the NOV in its entirety.

DATED this Q(; ) day of July, 1991.

Denls® A. Dragoo, Esq.
FABIAN & CLENDENIN,

a Professional Corporation
Attorneys for Petitioner
215 South State Street
Twelfth Floor
P.O0. Box 510210
Salt Lake City, Utah 84151
(801) 531-8900

(- ;_,,,', - Q . ‘\C\' Q&«\ ﬂﬁ?§
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that I caused a true and correct copy
of the foregoing Petition for Review and Request for Hearing to
be mailed, via certified mail, return receipt request, this céM5~’

day of July, 1991, to:

Assistant Regional Solicitor for Surface Mining
United States Department of the Interior

P.O. Box 25007 '

Denver Federal Center

Denver, Colorado 80225-0007

(et 577@9%54;

DAD:072691b

- 14 -



. ' "p'\; EXHIBIT "A" *'.
U.S. DEPARTMENT S THE INTERIOR . umber
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement 91 ———%
NOTICE OF VIOLATION
Permanent Regulatory Procedures Hwn2e 1901 [TV 1

2. Name X Permittee | Originating Office Address

- O No Permit ‘ '
Pacificorp Electric Operations USDI-OSM

3. Mailing Address - Albuquerque Field Office

324 South State Street, Salt Lake City, UT 84126 625 Silver Ave., SW #310
4. Name of Mine 0 Surface O Other (Specify)
Underground / Albuquerque, M 8710?
Cottonwood/Wilberg - i ) o
_5. Telephone Number | 6. County i State Telephone Number
: I
(801) 363-8851 Emery | Utah -1 (505) 76614860 7 -
7. Operator's Name (If other than permittee) . . - .. .|.9.Dateof Inspection . .
" Energy West Mining Company ‘ June 26, 1991
8. Mailing Address S : 7 5 F10: Time of ihSdtrdn B
"P.0, Box 310, Huntington, UT 84528 | From 9p0 tm’ 10 [0 2%
11. State Permit Number | 12. NPDES Number. 13 MSHA D Number 14 OSM Mine Number
ACT/015/019 ol - s . T 42-00080 , N/A . e ;;Z
- LTS S }7 .. r.--z,._ e a2
- * - ! =0 : 3 o e o
M Lot e, . o« BT Y 2 JLERE S e I TN Sy R U

UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF THE SURFACE MINING CONTROL AND RECLAMATION ACT OF
1977 (P.L. 95-87; 30 U.S.C. 1201), THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE o
SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR has conducted an inspection of the above mine on the above date"
and has found violation(s) of the Act, the reguiations or required permit condition(s) listed in the at-
tachment(s). This Notice constitutes a separate Notlce od‘ Violation for each violatron Iisted

Rt B +Tap

S

You must abate each of these vrolation(s) wnthm the desngnated abatement tlme You are respon-
sible for doing all work m a safe and workmanlike manner
THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE HEREBY FlNDS THAT THIS NOTICE -
DOES NOT O DOES REQUIRE CESSATION OF MINING EXPRESSLY OR IN PRACTICAL EF-
ECT. Therefore, you O are }Z’\are not entitled to an informal public hearing on request, within 30
days after service of this notice (30 CFR 843.15). :

This Notice shall remain in effect untii it exprres as provided on the reverse or is modlfied ter- :
minated, or vacated by written notice of an authorized representative of the Secretary. The time for
correction may be extended by an authorized representative for good cause. If you need additionai
time to correct the violation(s), please contact the field office named above.

IMPORTANT—Please Read Information on the Back of this Page

15. Print Name of Person Served 18. Date of Service
Gm\q D&uis ' 2 %ua.z, ;C;, {_ﬁ'ﬁl
16. Print Title of Person Served 19. Print Name of Authorized Representative
N £ '
E-:\—U';V‘aw rww\-’ bv\q;“-@"(/ . Gary L. Fritz
17. Signature of Person Served = 20. Signature ot Authorized Representative T ID Number
|
3 244

Copy Disinbu‘uon ‘White-Fieid Office File,Blue-Permilee. Y eifow-Assessment Office,Green-Inspector IE-161 (3/ 81)
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s * \ —

"1 Il.-s. DEPARTMENT OF THE INT- ' Number
Office of Surface Mining Reclamamand Enforcement ',;.— 02 — 244 —;1
Violation Numbaer

NOTICE OF VIOLATION (CONTINUATION) 1 of 1
NATURE OF PERMIT CONDITION VIOLATED, PRACTICE OR VIOLATION

Failure to first obtain a permit from the Division (DOGM) prior to engaging in and
carrying out any coal mining and reclamation operations.

PROVISION(S) OF THE REGULATIONS, ACT OR PERMIT VIOLATED
UCA 40-10-1 et seq.
R614-300-112.400
PL 95-87 Sec. 506(a)
30 CFR 773.11(a)

PORTION OF THE OPERATION TO WHICH NOTICE APPLIES

| This Notice applies to the Cottonwood/Wilberg Mine haul road from the present permit
boundary (former guard shack location) approximately 13 miles south to the recei ving

scale of the Hunter Preparation Plant.

CORRECTIVE ACTION REQUIRED (Including Interim Steps, if Any)
(1) Reclaim within 80 days or submit a complete and adequate plan, in accordance with
R614-300 and the State program, to permit and bond the haul road identified above to the
Utah Division of 0il, Gas and Mining (DOGM) within 30 days of receipt of this Notice.
(2) Diligently pursue abatement of this Notice (plan aprpoval) not to exceed 80 davs
from Notice issuance.

(3) Implement permitting and bonding plan as per plan approval.

(4) Cease the further construction or improvement of the access/haul road until

permitted in accordance with the approved State program.

(5) Cease any practice or correct any condition resulting in adverse environmental
impacts.

TIME FOR ABATEMENT (Including Time for interim Steps, if Any)

1) Reclaim within 80 days or i i thi : :

Notice at 4:30 p.m., by the thirtieth day (7/26/91).
(2) 80 days from receipt of this Notice at 4:30 p.m., by the eightieth day (9/14/91).
(3) Upon plan approval.

Copy Distribution: White-District Office File, Blue-Permittee, Yellow-Assessment Ctfice, Pink-Field Office. Green-Inspector |E-158A (12/80)
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EXHIBIT "B" 5ﬁ/ i/// ?—é W/ 021
[~ GNITED STATES DEPARTN/‘F THE INTERIOR Ongmatﬁ / &S mEE

Office of Surface Mining AR , 8 IC7] [u«l% ?:(3/»/ QEG £
Reclamation and Enforcement '

TEN-DAY NOTICE (025 2/ lver Ave 5.W., Syite 3/0

| L bq‘c N XTI
C s Y R
Number: X - ff - 2 - S -0&F TV / Telephone Number(b‘(é) /(u& /451&

Ten-Day Notice to the State of UTAH

You are notified that, as a resuit ofﬂ_@ﬂpliﬁk,_gf'_mdcm_:ém#LM%bﬁﬂag. a federaldrigpectiony
citizen information, etc.) the Secretary has reason to believe that the person described below is in violation
of the Act or a permit condition required by the Act. If the State Regulatory Authority fails within ten days
after receipt of this notice to take appropriate action to cause the violation(s) described herein to be cor-
rected, or to show cause for such failure and transmit notice of your action to the Secretary through the
originating office designaled above, then a Federal inspection of the surface coal mining operation at
which the alleged violation(s) is occurring will be conducted and appropriate enforcement action as re-
quired by Section 521(a)(1) of the Act will be taken.

Permltteepik.ig Co)i’b £/Ec-/-7\’ [ 0?1)@4:0.4.&: County: f ﬂ?EZ-f [J Surface

(Or Operator if No Permit)

Mailing Address: 324 Spulh Stads .S'f" SaM [ ks C’/\-l UT_ 3412 (e & Underground
Permit Number 4C7T. __©/S Q9 Mine Name: CQM%@:Q O oOther

NATURE OF VIOLATION AND LOCATION: Balure 4o Gizst obdain « wh«&- {2om

%)\c ]) V:.‘.'>4o‘~J Cbbémb Dr»c( 'i*e &.nq,qa.ncaf T anA Lqrmmg, QuT an-/
Codl  mipinen and K?c—‘qmq:hc am/ko&\t.ﬁa.

Section of State Law, Regulation or Permit

| Condition believed to have been violated: B/ 19- 3D~ -1i9.400

NAFURE-OFHOLATION-AND LOCATION: éoc Atics) is Co%«)woob/wwﬁg&z héuleead
(wm DZasw’)'{' D&;—mr/’ i)owﬂu[qm-/ ( )Qﬂm/:ll C’Liekcl S}la(./k /oc.c/d‘)o/\})

DDZcer,«Heg/ /3 m/les >w--//x 4 £he Recelving <call of

L

Section of State Law, Regulation or Perghit
/la ‘é/u; € —P/?tﬁ P/q,;-/' Condition believed to have been violatdd: —

NATURE OF VIOLATION AND LOCATION:

Seetion of State Law, Regulation or Permit
Condition believed to have been violated:

Remarks or Recommendations: SMLMML Wm/#/ﬁ/(ﬁ //%o'ome“} / néls marh A ~<f-*\
Do Gl é)w, /)4(4./‘/1’:5;4—0/ /)C"‘/CJ c»écvﬁ_“

A
Date of Notice: J/’ < /”;-’ Signature of Authorized Rep: %&w;&? Q Um\

P L RN . .- ya - ‘ , 1#//
F ({é> ey OL{Q-— Print Name and 1D: /bﬁ7 )4454 AL G

Distribution: Originai-State's Copy, Blue-Field Oftice, Yellow-Inspector's Copy 1E-160 (3/81)



Page 1 of 2 Pages

United States Department of the Interior

Office of Surface Mining

For Office Use Only

Mine Site Evaluation Inspection Report = = =
Y Y M M Batch Report
10. Date of Inspection
2. Name of Permittee 9. MSHA Number T (YYMMDD)
e 3 P - l .
alel Elilelelzlpl Al Eletrld ] 421" jolelolglo i Qillelzizlg
3. Street Address 11. State Permit Number
32 4 i SHaHE] Acl Q5] 10118
4. City 5. State 12. Name of Mine
) - l ) | ,
SiAlc k £ s Clo el oleln /W T Nelrlsl
6. Zip Code 7. Area Code 8. Telephone Number 13. County Code 14. State Code 15. Strata 16. StatQArea Office
dalilzlel  ldol] Elelal-leklslildilsl  u
17. OSM Field 18. OSM Area 19. OSMIK ROM 14, 1BGRot J-5eD T ransovstad 22 Inspector’s ID
Office No. Office No. Sampie No. (Code)‘ f!e_s‘ No No.
{ i ] .
oz D | J i [. RS
23. Status 24. Type of Activity (check applicable coxes).

Type of Permit

A lal/ ]
s [A[]

Mine Status (Cdde)

Type of Facility (Code)

A D Steep Siope E

B Mountain Top Removal
F

L
X
¢ []

Anthracite

rederal Lands

C D Prime Farmiands indian Lands
D 'w] ° Number of Permitted Acres
l g o D D Alluvial Vailey Floors H D Other
E clo 42| Number of Disturbed Acres
#* S v
25. Performance Standards (Codes! ¥ S Nnarreg ve ¢
Instructions: Indicate compliance code. For any standard marked 2 or 3 provide nairative to support this determination.
Standards That Limit the Effects to the Permit Area Standards That Assu'e Reclamation Ouality and Timeliness
A D Distance Frohibitions M D Topsoil Hangling
B Mining Within Permit Boundaries N D Backtiiling and Grading
(o} D Signs and Markers [o] D Following Reclamation Scheduie
D D Sediment Control Measures p D Revegetation Requirements
E D Design and Certification Requirements— Q D Disposai of Excess Spoil
Sediment Control
R I:l Handling of Acid or Toxic Materials
F Effluent Limits
D s D Highwall Elimination
G Surface Water Monitoring
D ) T D Downslope Spoil Disposai
H D Ground Water Monitoring
, u D Post Mining Land Use
| D Blasting Procedures
v I:I Cessation of Operations: Temporary
J D Haul/Access Road Design and Maintenance
w D Other -
K D Refuse Impoundments
L D Other: Specify
Distribution: Original - Fieid Office, Green - Headquarters, Blue - State's Copy. Yellow - Inspector’s Copy. Pink - File Copy 1E - 163 (1/83)
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26. State Permit Number 27. Date of inspection
YYMMDD)

Wletr] TelilsT Telyfgl T T T T T T T 1] [@Qlifelajals]

28. Yes No Do mining and reclamation activities on the site comply with the plans in the permit?
3] 1 If no, provide narrative to support this determination.

29. Indicate number of complete and partial inspections conducted by the State to date for th annual review, p rl
A TON Ss5suhAnce © 17 see VARRA

29, ED Number of Complefes 29b. D—_—j Number of Partials

30. Indicate number of complete and partial inspections required by the State during this annual review period:

i
30a. ED Number of Completes 300. ED Number of Partials

31. Has inspection frequency been met?
Yes No 1 Yes No

31a. D E] Completes 31b. |___] D Partials

32 FEDERAL ENFORCEMENT INFORMATION. [Enter violation number. Check appropriate box(es)]
Ten-Day Notice No. Notice of Violation No. Cessation Order No. Violation Codes

BliHeaHhhie-eledl [ EI TP COL LTI P[0

ALY Ll Ll Authorizations to Operate
B Ol I T Signs and Markers
o I I TR SO I R Backfilling and Grading
] I O O Highwall Efimination

EL] I L o Rills and Gullies
o 0 I T L Improper Filts

L I I Lo Topsoil Handling
] I L1, Ll Sediment Ponds

) I I Lo Effluent Limits
I I Ll Lo Water Monitoring
I L] Ll Buffer Zones

ot I R O O o, Roads

ML I L] o, Dams

N Ll o, Lo, Blasting

O[] i L) o, Ol Revegetation

PO Ol O Spoil on the Downsiope

Ol I [ Mining Without Permit
) I e L L] o, Exceeding Permit Limits
] I O L] o, Distance Prohibitions
T I I Toxic Materials

o I I O Other Violations

33. Name of Authﬁdgieprwentat (pr%br typd) , A} : 34. Administrative Information
Us

Permit Review (Hours)
Signature #utmepn#ntaﬁ g

SIQnature of Reviewin

'91&—"‘4 4-—/S€
<~ 5\1 S

Travel Time (Hours)

Inspection Time (Hours)

Report Writing Time (Hours)

Distribution: Original - Fieid Oftice, Green - Headquarters, Blue - State’s Copy, Yellow - inspector's Copy, Pink - File Copy 1E - 163 (1/83)
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This Minesite Evaluation Inspection Report ( MEIR ) is intended te

Lransmit issuance of Ten-Day Notice 91-02-116-003 which is being
issued for failure to first obtain a permit from the bivision ( DOGM
) prior to engaging in and carring out any coal mining and
reclamation operations. This violation applies to the
Cottonwood/Wilberg Mine haulroad from the present permil boundary at
the former guard shack location, approximately 13 miles soubth Lo the
receiving scale of the Hunter Preparation Plant.

This TDN is issued as a result of the complete, random sample
oversight inspection conducted at the Cottonwood/Wilberg Mine on 2/
27 & 28 / 1991. Refer to MEIR completed on 3/6/91 for narrative on
this inspection.

To partially recap the inspection, we drove from the mine to the
Hunter Prep. Plant making general observations of the haulroadl
distances and configuration. It is approximately 13 miles from the
former guard shack location where the road enters the minesite, to
the Hunter Prep. Plant. Approximately 5 miles south of the mine, the
haulroad, which is designated state highway 57, intersects state
highway 29. This 5 mile stretch appears to be bordered exclusively by
Bureau of Land Management right of way and surrounding lands. The
only intersecting road is a permitted haulroad to the Des Bee Dove
mine and state highway 57 dead ends at the Cottonwood/Wilberg mine.

State highway 29 provides access east to Orangeville and west to
Joe's Valley Reservoir.

State highway 57 south of intersecting 29 runs approximately 7.5
miles to the receiving scale of the Hunter Prep. Plant ( Unpaved

spur off 57 to Prep. Plant ) and eventually intersects state highway'
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10, This 7.5 mi. stretch is boardered predominately by small farm
pastures. It is intersected by two paved roads, one running east
towards Orangeville, and one running southwest.

Based on the inspection and this inspectors experience in the area,
by far the predominant use of the 13 mi. stretch described is to
facilitate coal haulage from the mine to the Hunter Power Plant. As
such, the haulroad is part of the coal mining and reclamation
operations occuring at the mine and must be pexrmitted.

TDN issuance was briefly discussed with Bill Malencik, DOGM , via

telephone on 3/12/91.



Norman H. Bangerter

State #Utah =@

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF OIL, GAS AND MINING

A

- Governar
j Dee G, 358 West North Tempie

Puecutive Birnstor 3 Trind Gentar, Suile 350

Dianne R Nielson, PA.D. Sak Lske City, Utah 84180-1203

Bivizion Oireetar 801539-5340

March 27, 1991

CERTIFIED RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
No.P 54C 714 138 '

Mr. Robert H. Hagen, Director

Albuquerque Fleld Office

Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement

Suite 310, Sitver Square

625 Silver Avenue, S.W. :

Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

Dear Mr, Hagen:

Re: TDN X91-02-116-3 TV1, PacifiCorp Electric Operations, Cottonwood/Wilberg Mine,
ACT/015/019. Folder #5. Emery County. Utah

This letter Is In response to the above-referenced Ten-Day Notice, certified copy
recelved March 18, 1991, '

Number 1 of 1 reads: “Failurs to first obtain a permit from the Division (DOGM)
rior to engaging in and carrying out any coal mining and reclamation operations.”
ocatlon: Cottonwood/Wilberg haul road from present permit boundary (former guard

shack !ocatlonz1 approximately 13 miles south o the receiving scale of the Hunter Prep.
Plant. Ragulation citation: R614-300-112.400.

Q!yialnn_ngmng_e:

| have enclosed pages 11.1 and 11.2 from the approved MRP. The MRP, as
:;Jproved by OSM, clearly differentiates haul roads from state road 57 {11.1, paragraph

On page 11.2, OSM made a finding that the applicant was In compliance with the
requirements of the regulations at the time of approval. Subsequent o permit

apcfroval, this permit has undergone reviews at the mid-permit term and renewal. OSM
did not object to the permit renewal,

Subsequent to the renewal, DOGM's Board madified by emergancy rule making
the definilion of "road” and "public road" (2-25-81). You were notified of this
emergency rulemaking by letter from the Division Director dated March 1, 1991,

an aqual GRAGIumy MMM
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Page 2
Mr. Robert H. Hagen

March 27, 1991

The Division feels the Issuance of the TDN after promulgation of the emergency
rulemaking denies the Division reasonable time in which to manage and enforce its
program. The regulation cited in the TDN reads:

"All persons who engage In and carry out any coal mining and reclamation
will first obtain a permit from the Division. The applicant will provide all information
in an administratively complete application for review by the Division in accordance
with R614-300 and the state program.” ‘

The adequacy of the original permit and OSMs findings of compilance with respect
to roads have not been a subject of enforcement heretofore. The Division has
established and implemented a policy and action plan for reviewing roads under the
new rule. in the past, OSM has provided sufficient time for DOGM to implement new
rules. Failure of OSM to provide such time in this instance I8 an arbitrary and
capricious action on OSM's pant. ,

The TDN should be withdrawn pending Ulah's review under the emergency and
finally approved formai rule.

Sincerely,

Joner P Q%
Lowell P, Braxton
\ Associate Director, Mining

Enclosures
cc: P. Grubau?(h-ut’tig
D. Haddoc
J. Helfrich
Mi54/24&25
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XI.  ROADS |
11.1 Description of Applicant's Proposal

Access roads will be used in conjunction with the operation of facilities

" at the main Wilberg portal area in Grimes Wash, the Cottsnwood fan portal

site, and the waste rock disposal site. The roads at the main Wilberg portal
area already exist and are {in use; roads at the Cottonwood fan portal site and
waste rock disposal site are proposed.

There are five facility roads at the main Nilberg portal area, fdentified
as follows:

a. Haul road
'b. Truck turn-around
c. Service road

d. Portal road

e. Fan access road

A11 of the roads, except the fan access road are asphalt surfaced.
Adequate drainage is provided using roadside ditches and culverts,

The haul road {s a continuation of the plant access highway, State Road
No. 57. It i{s 28 feet wide with a grade of 8 to 12 percent. The haul road
ends at the truck turn-around loop, 2also 28 feet wide. The truck turn-around
Toop has a gradient ranging from level to a 12 percent transition with the
haul road. The haul road and truck turn~around are used for transportation of
coal and hence are defined as Class 1 roads. )

The service road starts at the junction of the haul road and truck turn-
arcund and terminates at the upper storage area. The service road is 20 feet
wide with a grade of 12 percent. Turn-outs are provided from the service road
to the plant siio area and the lower and upper parking lot in addition to the
upper storage area. The service road is planned for greater thian six months
use and hence 1s defined as a Class II road.

The portal rcad starts at the upper storage area and follows the mine
track extansion at a six percent grade to the elevaticon of the mine portals.
The fan access road is -a dirt road at variable width providing access from the
mine partal road to the mine ventilation fan. The road was constructed along
an existing alignment and is essentially level. The pertal road and fan
access road are defined as Class 1I roads.

The proposed access road at the Cottonwood fan portal site will utilize
an existing road that ariginally served the G1d Johnson Mine. This road will
be cleared of rubble and extended approximately 600 feet to provide access to
the fan portal and equipment. The existing road has an 85-foot section with g
grade of 17 percent; this will be regraded to provide a maximum grade for the
new road of eight percent. The proposed access road is defined as a Class I
road. The applicant does not state haw this road will be surfaced. Adequate
drainage 1s provided through roadside ditches and culverts.
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Small roads will be constructed from the main haul road to provide access
to the waste rock disposal site. These roads will have a maximum Tength of
approximately 500 feet and will be essentially level,

11.2 Evaluation of Compliance of Propasal

UMC 817.150 Roads: Class I: Eeneral

The applicant has complied with the requirements of this section.
UMC 817.151 Roads: Class I: Location

The applicant has complfed with the requirements of this section.
UMC 817.152 Roads: Class I: Design and Construction

Large sections of the haul roads of the main Nilberg portal area have
grades that exceed ten percent. These grades have been approved by DOGM in a
construction variance granted to the applicant. The applicant is, thus, {n
compliance with part (a). - —_— -

The applicant meets all other requirements of this section.

UMC 817.153 Roads: (Class I: Drainage

. The appiicant 1s fn compliance with this section.
UMC 817.154 Roads: Class I: Drainage

The asphalt surfacing of the haul road and truck turn-around meet all
requirements 'of this section.

UMC 817.155 Roads: Class I: Maintenance

The applicant has complied with the requirements of this section.

UMC 817.156 Roads: Class I: Restoration

The applicant meets the requirements of this section.

UMC 817.160 Roads: Class 1I: General

The applicant has complied with the requirements of this section.

UMeC 817.161 Roads: (Class II: Location

The applicant has compiied with the requirements of this section.



 EXHIBIT D-1"

TIBIT - . bw/refe] U W60
. @iStatu ®r Utah / ® RECEIVED-OSM

i DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Norman H. Bangerter DIVISION OF OIL, GAS AND MINING MAR 06 195]
Dee € Hansen 355 West North Temple :
e, § St ateGo, n s ALBUQUERQUE FIELD OFFICE

Dianne R Nielson, Ph.D. Satlt Lake City, Utah 84180-1203
Divsion Direcwor & 801-538-5340

March 1, 1991

Mr. Robert H. Hagen, Director

Albuquerque Field Office

Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement

Suite. 310, Silver Square

625 Silver Avenue, S.W.

Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

(%b
Dear Mr en:

Attached is the Notice of Emergency Rulemaking (Attachment 1) by the Board of
Oil, Gas and Mining regarding the definitions of "public road™ and the effective date of
the definition of "road.” As noted in the Order, the emergency rulemaking is effective
for 120 days, during which time the Board will proceed with formal rulemaking and
public comment and adopt final rules.

The Division hereby requests the Office of Surface Mining to initiate a program
amendment for the definitions of "road" and "public road.”

.As the Division developed its policy and action plan for determining the permiiting
of roads and particularly the exemption for public roads, it became clear that the
Division could not implement the plan absent a definition of "road" and a revision in the
definition of "public road.” As directed in the Board Order, the Division has finalized the
policy and is finalizing the action plan for conducting reviews of existing roads.

In accordance with OSM's State Program Amendment Guidelines, the following
responses are provided:

1.  The section-by-section comparison is presented in Attachment 2.
2. This sub-section is included in the section-by-section comparison.

3. The requirement for change is stated above. The Division cannot perform
the required reviews of roads and public road exemptions without the
definitions of "road" and "public road.”

4. Implementation of the review of the public road exemption was requested by
OSM. Because OSM has failed to take action on the Board’s
previously-proposed definition of "road", and because of case law regarding
the definition of "public road,” the Board initiated emergency rulemaking and
the Division is requesting a program amendment.

an equal opporunity empioyer



Page 2
Mr. Robert H. Hagen
March 1, 1991

5. Deletion/addition language is delineated in Attachment 3.

6. The definitions submitted are subject to formal rulemaking notice and could
) be amended during formal rulemaking. The emergency rule is effective for
120 days. The Division will notify OSM when formal ruilemaking is complete.

7. Legal opinion not provided. See the policy statement, Attachment C ot
Emergency Order, for discussion and interpretation of case law.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

est regards,

Dianne R. Nielson
Director

vb
Attachments
MI84/1&2
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8. Mine plans approved by the Division of 0il, Gas and
Mining and the Office of Surface Mining designate certain roads as
"public roads" not subject to permitting under the Utah coal
regulatory program;

9. Despite sufficient time and in violation of its own
regulations concerning time frames for action on a program
amendment, the Office of Surface Mining has failed to approve or
deny the proposed program amendment for the definition of. "road";
and

10. 2As a result of the failure of the Office of Surface
Mining to take action, the Utah coal regulatory program rules
contain no definitions for "road" and no exclusion of a public road
from the definition of a "road" or "“affected area®;

CONCLUSTONS OF LAW

1. The Federal District Court decisions, In Re: Permanent

Surface Mining Requlation Litigation (IYI), 620 F. Supp. 1519, 1581~

82 (D.D.C. 1985) as modified by National Wildlife Federation v.
Hodel, 839 F.2d 694 (D.C. Cir. 1988) and Harmon Mining Corporation

v. Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement, 659 F.
Supp. 806 (W.D. Va. 1987) did not find a requirement of inclusion
of public roads in the definition of a road under § 701(28) (B) of
SMCRA;

2. The existing Utah criteria concerning whether a road's
nonmining use is substantial (more than incidental) has been
expressly rejected and remanded in In Re: Permanent Surface Mining
Requlation Litigation (IT), SMCRA, and must therefore be removed
from Utah Admin. R. 614-100-200 definition of "public road" as
required by 51 Fed. Reg. 41960, Nov. 20, 1986; and

3. 30 C.F.R. § 701.5 provides for the exclusion of certain
public roads from regulation. Therefore, the Utah coal regulatory
program rules are improperly promulgated because they are more
stringent than the federal counterpart regulations. Therefore, in
the absence of enforceable rules for the definitions of "road" and
"public road," the Utah coal regulatory program rules are less
effective than the federal program counterpart requlations.

ORDER

NOW THEREFORE, so as to be in compliance with State and
Federal law, this Board does enter into emergency rulemaking,
whereby:

1. The definition of "road" as presented in proposed
rulemaking in DAR File #10936, having been offered for public
comment on July 26, 1990, and adopted by the Board on October 1,
1990, 1is to be made effective immediately, pursuant to this
emergency rulemaking. The Board takes this action irrespective of
the statement in Utah Admin. R. 614-100-130 regarding the effective

date;



2. The definition of "public road," as amended and stated in
Attachment B, is to be made effective immediately, pursuant to this
emergence rulemaking;

3. Published concurrently with this notice is a Division of
Administrative Rules notice of emergency rulemaking which
officially enters the October 1, 1990 definition of "road" into
effective rule status for a period of one hundred and twenty days
from the date of this Order, with intent to complete formal
rulemaking within that time period;

4. Published concurrently with this notice is a Division of
Administrative Rules notice of emergency rulemaking which
officially enters the amended definition of ‘"public road"
(Attachment B) into effective rule status for a period of one
hundred and twenty days from the date of this order, with intent to
complete formal rulemaking within that time period;

5. The effect of this emergency rulemaking is to grant to
the Division the ability to effectively requlate coal haul roads in
the State of Utah. Further, it provides an articulable basis for
individual evaluations of roads as to their public status to
determine whether or not they are subject to permitting;

6. The Division shall implement its "Policy for the
Implementation of Site Specific Determinations of the Public Status
of Roads" (Attachment C);

7. The Division shall develop an action plan for evaluating
mine roads for permitting requirements; and

8. In accordance with the Utah Administrative Rulemaking Act
(U.C.A. 63-46a-7) and Rule R2-4-8, the temporary (emergency) rule
changes to R614-100-200 will be made subject to the regular
rulemaking process and open for public comment at a regular hearing
before the Board.

ORDERED this 25th day of February, 1991.

AN/ e—

Grégory/y. Wflliams, Chairman
Board of 0il, Gas and Mining
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Attachment A
Definition of "Road"

Adopted by Board of 0il, Gas and Mining, June 1, 1990
Disapproved by Office of Surface Mining, April 12, 1990
Rescinded by Board of 0il, Gas and Mining, October 1, 1990

"Road" means a surface right-of-way for purposes of travel by land
vehicles used in coal exploration or coal mining and reclamation
operations. A road consists of the entire area within the right-
of-way including the roadbed, shoulders, parking and side areas,
approaches, structures, ditches, and surface. The term includes
access and haul roads constructed, used, reconstructed, improved,
or maintained for use in coal exploration, or within the affected
area of coal mining and reclamation operations, including use by
coal hauling vehicles leading to transfer, processing, or storage
areas. The term does not include public roads when an evaluation
of the extent of the mining related uses of the road to the public
uses of the road has been made by the Division or roads within the
immediate mining-pit area.

Adopted by the Board of 0il, Gas and Mining, October 1, 1990,
pending approval by the Office of Surface Mining
No action by the Office of Surface Mining as of February 20, 1991

"Road" means a surface right-of-way for purposes of travel by land
vehicles used in coal exploration or coal mining and reclamation
operations. A road consists of the entire area within the right-
of-way including the roadbed, shoulders, parking and side areas,
approaches, structures, ditches, and surface. The term includes
access and haul roads construqted, used, reconstructed, improved,
or maintained for use in coal exploration, or within the affected
area of coal mining and reclamation operations, including use by
coal hauling vehicles leading to transfer, processing, or storage

areas. The term does not include fpublicroads—whemramrevaiuation
of—the—extent—of—themitming—related—uses—of—the—road—to-the—pubiic

uses—of—theroadt—has—beemrmadeby—theBivistomor} roads within the
immediate mining-pit areaf=} and mav not include public roads as
determined on a site specific basis.
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ATTACHMENT B

Definition of "Public Road"

Adopted by Board of 0il, Gas and Miniﬁg; June 1, 1990
Approved by Office of Surface Mining, April 12, 1990

"Public Road" means a road (a) which has been designated as a
public road pursuant to the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is
located, (b) which is maintained with public funds in a manner
similar to other public roads of the same classification within the
jurisdiction, (c¢) for which there 1is substantial (more than
incidental) public use, and (d) which meets road construction
standards for other public roads of the same classification in the
local jurisdiction.

Amended and adopted by Board of 0il, Gas and Mining as emergency

rule, February 25, 1991

Proposed to Office of Surface Mining for program amendment,
February 25, 1991

"Public Road" means a road (a) which has been designated as a
public road pursuant to the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is
located, (b) which is maintained with public funds in a manner
similar to other public roads of the same classification within the
jurisdiction, t i i
trret - and <& (c) which meets road
construction standards for other public roads of the same
classification in the local jurisdiction.
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ATTACHMENT C

DIVISION OF OIL, GAS AND MINING
POLICY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF SITE SPECIFIC
DETERMINATIONS OF THE PUBLIC STATUS OF ROADS
UNDER R614-100-200

Effective Date: February 25, 1991
Authorized By: Dianne R. Nie
: Director

Summary Determination

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide direction
for Division staff in determining if an "access and/or haulage
road" is a "public road" in the context of coal mining and
reclamation operations under the Utah Coal Regulatory Program,
Utah Code Ann. § 40-10-1 et seq. and Utah Admin. R. 614 et seq.
If such a road is determined to be a "public road," it will not
be subject to permitting under the Program.

Attempts to establish specific criteria which a rocad
must meet in order to qualify as a public road have proved
unworkable. Each road must be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.
It is p0551b1e, however, to delineate criteria which will be
considered in conductlng that case-~by-case determination. With
that distinction in mind, the following procedure will be used to
evaluate roads associated with existing and proposed Mining and
Reclamation Plans. Roads associated with Reclamation Only Plans
and operations in final reclamation and bond release will not be
reevaluated or redesignated under this policy.

1. Identify all roads, located within the boundary of the
permit area and providing access to the permit area, which
will be used in conjunction with operations under the Mining
and Reclamation Plan. (Roads which are presumptively
subject to permitting.)

. 2. Consider the status or use of the road with respect. to the
following criteria:

a. Whether the road is designated as a public road
pursuant to the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is
located;

an equal opportunsty employer
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b. Whether the road is maintained with public funds in a
manner similar to other public roads of the same
classification within the jurisdiction;

Cc. Whether the road meets road construction standards for
roads of the same classification in the local jurisdiction;
and '

d. Whether the permittee has‘authority to deny access.

3. Consider other relevant state statutes or case law.on the
subject of public roads.

4. Consider other relevant facts and circumstances regarding
the particular road, including existing performance
standards made a part of a land use permit.

5. Prepare a written finding as to whether the road is or is
not a public road and therefore does or does not need to be
permitted. Include rationale and documentation which form
the basis for the determination.

Background

The necessity for a determination regarding permitting
of a road associated with a coal mining and reclamation operation
is dictated by the requirement in Utah Code Ann. § 40-10-3(18) (b)
as well as § 701(28) (B) of SMCRA, where "surface coal mining
operations" are defined as:

The areas upon which the activities occur or where the
activities disturb the natural land surface. These [Such]
areas shall also include any adjacent land the use of which
is incidental to the activities, all lands affected by the
construction- of new roads or the improvement or use of
existing roads to gain access to the site of the activities

and for haulage... (emphasis added)

Utah developed public road classification criteria
February 24, 1984, which parallelled the federal criteria adopted
by OSM April 5, 1983 (48 Fed. Reg. 14,814). Subsequently, the
District Court for the District of Columbia (Judge Flannery)
remanded the portion of the rule, the definition of "Affected
Area," which dealt with public roads. In re Permanent Surface

Mining Requlation Litigation, 620 F. Supp. 1519, 1581-82 (D.D.C.
1985), modified subnom., National Wildlife Federation wv. Hodel,

839 F.2d 694 (D.C. Cir. 1988). As a result, that portion of
Utah's definition of "Affected Area" was also remanded under its
rules on December 3, 1985. In 1985, OSM proposed to rewrite the
rule defining "Affected Area."™ That did not occur. Instead, on
November 20, 1986, (51 Fed. Reg. 41,960) OSM suspended any

2



possible exclusion for public roads from tRe definition. Road |
standards were clarified by OSM on Novenber 11, 1988 (53 Fed.' .~
Reg. 45,190). 1In its last rulemaking, OSM stated that road
classification and the jurisdictional reach of federal land

management agencies regarding roads must be determined on a case-
by-case basis.

L 3

The crux of the matter is that SMCRA states that every
road used to gain access to a mine or for haulage related to the
operations must be permitted. As John Kunz, Interior Department
Staff Attorney in the Division of Surface Mining, noted in his
June 13, 1990, Sclicitor's Memorandum:

However, common sense dictates that in enacting §
701(28) (B), the Congress never intended that certain public
roads be permitted. (p. 4)

The court, in Harman Mining Corp. v. Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement, 659 F. Supp. 806 (W.D. Va. 1987)

addressed the problem when it determined that:

Obviously, Congress did not anticipate that operators would
have to permit interstate highways or four-lane state
routes, nor that they would have to permit every road used
to haul coal, whether four-lane or two-lane, state or
county, paved or unpaved, or even public or private.

Factors Unique to the Utah Coal Program

The land use and management patterns of the western
United States public domain and national forest lands differ
markedly from other parts of the country. Land use, including
use of roads, is guided by a number of entities, not the least of
which are the federal land management agency and the county/state
government. Furthermore, management of and changes in land use
are prescribed in federal regional Resource Management Plans and
Forest Management Plans. The public's use of lands in the
vicinity of coal mining operations is generally not restricted,
except where public safety requires. As such, the disturbed area
of the mine is closed to the public and the balance of the
national forest or public domain land adjacent to and associated
with the mine is open to the public. Because of the
significantly smaller "disturbed area" associated with an
underground mining operation (constituting all operations in
Utah) public access is significantly increased as compared to
surface mines. Due to the multiple (open) use policy, public
access to and maintenance of roads, which also access coal mines
in .Utah, is the rule, rather than the exception. Public bodies
(federal, state, and county) maintain some degree of control over
the majority of roads for the benefit of the public.
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Discussion Of Procedure
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As set forth in the first paragraph of this memorandum
the methodology for determining whether or not to permit a road
begins with the presumptive determination that all roads are
subject to permitting which are constructed, reconstructed,
improved or maintained to provide access to the mine site or for
haulage. This is in recognition of the clear statutory language
set forth in .Utah Code Ann. § 40-10-3(18)(b), and § 701(28) (B) of
SMCRA. The criteria set forth and discussed below are applied to
roads which meet the statutory definition of areas where,
"surface coal mining operations™ occur on or disturb the natural

land surface.

The criteria as set forth below are used to determine
when a road has become so “public" that the statutory purpose of
permitting is no longer applicable.

In his June 13, 1990, Memorandum, Kunz specifically
considered the use of criteria in designating public roads.

In the past, DOGM and OSM have unsuccessfully attempted to
develop an exhaustive set- of criteria to define what
constitutes a public road. Because of the diverse facts
potentially involved, this approach appears to be misguided.
Rather, it is apparent that DOGM and OSM could better apply
general criteria in a case-by-case approach to determine
what roads should be permitted. (p. 17)

This recommendation forms the basis for the
consideration of roads on a case-by-case basis using general
criteria and other relevant information, as defined in the above
Summary. The criteria described in the above Summary are based
on Utah's definition of "Public Road" (Utah Admin. R. 614-100-
200). These are the same basic criteria suggested in the Kunz
Memorandum, with one notable exception, as discussed below.

When the procedure described in the above Summary is

utilized, the following factors will be considered.

Whether the road is designated as a public road pursuant to the
laws of the jurisdiction in which it is located (2.a)

Definitions provided in Utah Code will be used in
making determinations. Under Utah Admin. R. 614-100-200, the
Board has approved the following definitions:

"Road" means a surface right-of-way for purposes of travel
by land vehicles used in coal exploration or coal mining and
reclamation operations. a road consists of the entire area
within the right-of-way including the roadbed, shoulders,

4
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_.parking and-side areas, approaches, structures, ditches, and

surface.- ‘The term includes dccess -and haul roadds .
constructed, used, reconstructed, improved, or maintained
for use in coal exploration, or within the affected area of
coal mining and reclamation operations, including use by
coal hauling vehicles leading to transfer, processing, or
storage areas. The term does not include roads within the
immediate mining-pit area and may not include public roads
as determined on a site specific basis.

And

"public road" means road (a) which has been designated as a
public road pursuant to the laws of the jurisdiction in
which it is located, (b) which is maintained with public
funds in a manner similar to other public roads of the same
classification within the jurisdiction, (c) for which there
is substantial (more than incidental) public use, and (d)
which meets road construction standards for other public
roads of the same classification in the local jurisdiction.

The definition of "Road"™ is pending approval by OSM as a part of

the Round II Rules package. The Board has recently deleted part

(c) of the definition of public road, as a result of an emergency
rulemaking. '

Under Utah Code Ann. § 27-12-2(8), the definition of public
road is further clarified:

"public highway" means any road, street, alley, lane, court,
place, viaduct, tunnel, culvert, or bridge laid out or erected as
such by the public, or dedicated or abandoned to the public, or
made such in an action for the partition of real property, and
includes the entire area within the right-of-way.

In applying the criteria, there are initially two types
of roads subject to designation as public roads:

1. Roads which are designated as a federal, state, or county
roads by the respective agency with jurisdiction, and

2. Roads on national forest or public domain land which are
authorized under existing law by the land management agency
as roads with public access, although the road may not be
specifically designated as a public road.

In the first case, the specific designation of a road
as a federal, state, or county road will be grounds for an
initial determination that the road is a public road and not
subject to permitting. The remaining criteria will be considered
with the intent of determining if there are any factors which are
contrary to the initial determination that the road need not be

5
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. permitted. Thls approach recognizes that, in de51gnat1ng the
road as a federal state, or ‘county road, the road must meet °
certain standards. Authority and responsibility (liability) rest
with the government agency.

If the road is not designated as a federal, state, or
county road, the initial determination will be that it is not a
public road. The remaining criteria will be applied, again on a
case-by-case basis, to determine if there are any considerations
which support determining the road to be a public road, not
subject to permitting.

Whether the road is maintained with public funds in a manner
similar to other public roads of the same classification within
the jurisdiction (2.b)

When evaluating construction, reconstruction,
improvements, and maintenance, consideration should be given to:

- Who has authority and responsibility for maintenance,

- Who performs the work,

- Who pays for the work,

- Who will be responsible for the maintenance of the
work, and ‘

- Whether the work is being done in lieu of other
payments such as taxes or fees.

The issue here is not so much funding as it is
authority and responsibility. If the road is designated as a
federal, state, or county road, the maintenance is the ultimate
responsibility of that government agency. For instance, the
county may make arrangements with the coal operator to clear snow
from the road in the winter. The arrangement is made out of
convenience (operator has equipment nearby as opposed to county
equipment which is 15 miles away), requirements for privatization
of government services (such as snow removal), or other reasons.
However, the responsibility (and liability) ultimately rest with
the county.

One might argue that, if the operator maintains a road
at no cost to the county, the road is not a public road and is
therefore subject to permitting. Two contravening considerations
arise. If the county is not overseeing or managing the
maintenance, it may be failing to discharge its responsibility
and protect itself from liability. However, it has not
transferred jurisdiction (authority) or responsibility. The road
is still a public road. On the other hand, if maintenance by the
private entity (the operator) is monitored by the county, one
might conclude that the county negotiated a very favorable deal
for its constituents--reduced tax payer burden without reduced
service. Again, jurlsdlctlon (authority) and responsibility rest
with the county. The road is a public road, not subject to

6
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Whether the road meets road construction standards for other
public roads of the same classification in the local jurisdiction
(2.c)

In order for a road to be designated as a federal,
state, or county road, it must meet certain construction
criteria. Furthermore, maintenance or reconstruction is
conducted in accordance with certain standards.

Therefore, consideration of construction standards is
subject to the same tests for authority and responsibility.
Failure of the agency to enforce approprlate construction
standards may be an act of bad faith, but it does not negate the
authority and responsibility of the government for the road. The
road is still a public road.

Under a different scenario, the county may enter into
an agreement with the BIM for construction or maintenance of a
road on public domain land. The BLM may impose county road
standards. The question then is: If the road is not designated
as a public road by the federal, state, or county, but county
standards of maintenance are used for the work performed by the
county, is it a public road? Who has authority and
responsibility for the road? . Again, that question would be
answered based on the specific case and in consideration of
relevant information.

Pre-existing special use road permits by a land
management agency which reflect the land management agency's
determination and implementation of performance/design standards
as well as reclamation requirements'and appropriate bonding
provide a sufficient basis for not attempting to extend Division
jurlsdlctlon for road permitting purposes. Because the federal
statute concerns itself with the impact of the surface effect of
coal mining, the pre-existing federal land management disposition
of impacts to the environment related to SpeClal use permits
should be granted great weight by the Division in its permitting
decisions.

Whether the effect of the mining use of the road is relatively
minor in comparison to the other uses of the road

This criterion is proposed by the Kunz Memorandum and
included in the state's initial definition of "Public Road."
However, based on court rulings, this criterion is not to be used
in the evaluation. As set forth above, this concept is subsumed
in the original determination regarding which roads should be
evaluated in the first instance.

Of particular concern as one considers this issue is

..
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the application of a criterian addre581ng "more than 1nc1dgntal
‘use" of a road. The court's ruling in Nationa¥ wWildlife -
Federation v. Hodel recognized the problem when it stated:

Presumably then, when hauling or access are among many uses
made of a road, such as an interstate highway, the effect
from the mining use is de minimis, or relatively minor, and
thus the road need not be included as part of the surface
coal mining operatlon. ut, the Secre 's e goes far

beyond what is called for by section 701(28) [of SMCRA] in
exempting essentially all public roads where public use is

more than incidental. . . . Nor does the rule concern itself
with whether the road is in some way directly, rather than
incidentally, part of the mining operatlon. Instead, the
rule focuses cur1ously on whether the publlc use is more
than incidental, in which case the road is exempt. The rule
does not bear a logical nexus to the Secretary's goal in
promulgating it, or to the Secretary's own. stated
understanding of‘what the law requires. (emphasis added)

There is an important distinction in the ruling. That
is the distinction between the road being incidental to mining
(or mining having a de minimis impact on the road) as opposed to
incidental use of the road. Judge Flannery ordered the
definition to be remanded because, instead of focusing on whether
the road was "directly, rather than incidentally, part of the
m1n1ng operation," the definition focused on "whether public use
is more than incidental.™ When a road is reviewed for
consideration as a public road exempt from permitting, the road
status, not just use, should be considered.

Furthermore, it is important to understand that Judge
Flannery did not establish or otherwise give deference to a road
criterion which evaluated incidental or de minimis use. He
simply rejected OSM's argument for the criterion. The Kunz
Memorandum recognizes this when it states with respect to the

remand:

Judge Flannery was not attempting to definitively define
criteria that must be used to determine what constitutes a

public road. (emphasis added)

More recently in Harman Mining Corp. v. Office of

Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement, the court considered
numerous factors or criteria in determining that the road in

question qualified as a public road and was not subject to
permitting. The criteria used by the court in its analysis

included:

) Jurisdiction,
. Responsibility for maintenance,
) Construction standards, and

8



. Public Access

The incidence of public versus private use was not a basis for
the decision although evidence of use was introduced by parties.
The IBLA has since adopted the analysis of the court in Harman
Mining Corp. v. Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and
Enforcement in its determinations regarding public roads, placing
no weight on evidence of incidence of use. Therefore, to use a
criterion based on "incidental use® for the Utah Progranm is
inconsistent with case law. This criterion, as currently stated
in the Utah rule, will not be weighed in the determination of
public road status and permitting requirements. Furthermore, the
clause (part ¢ of the Public Road definition) has been deleted by
the Board through emergency rulemaking, in order to ensure that
the Utah program is no less effective than and no more stringent
than the federal progranm.

Consider other relevant state statutes or case law on the_ subiject
of public roads (3)

Consider any other relevant facts and circumstances regarding the

particular situation (4)

The Kunz Memorandum provides a list of suggested
criteria which could be used in the case-by-case evaluation (p.
16-17). Those criteria mirror those listed in the above Summary.
However, Kunz is also careful to avoid inappropriately
prescriptive terms.

The listed criteria must not be considered in a vacuum.
...Accordingly, the listed criteria must be considered
in the context of (the) statutory provision. (p. 16)

In addition, other relevant State statutory or case law
on the subject of public roads should properly be
considered in the decision-making process. As the
facts and circumstances of a particular situation
dictate, other relevant factors should also properly be
considered. (p. 17)

For example, one consideration would be whether the
coal operator has the authority to deny the public access to the
road. In the context of the disturbed area of the mine, when
located on public domain or national forest land, it is clear
that the operator can, for health/safety reasons, deny the public
access to the "public land" during the life of mine. Now,
consider public access in the context of a road. If a road on
public domain or national forest land provides for public access,
can the operator deny access to the road by the public if the
operator desires to have sole use of the road, or would the
operator be required to construct a separate road? If public
access cannot be denied, then a road is a public road.

9
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ATTACHMENT 2

iurface Mining Control and Reclamation
ct

30 CFR §701.5: Definitions

Public Road - no definition

Affected Area means any land or water
surface area which is used to facilitate, or
is physically altered by, surface coal
mining and reclamation operations. The
affected area includes the disturbed area;
any area upon which surface coal mining
and reclamation operations are
conducted; any adjacent lands the use of
which is incidental to surface coal mining
and reclamation operations; all areas
covered by new or existing roads used to
gain access to, or for hauling coal to or
from, surface coal mining and '
reclamation operations, except as
provided in this definition; any area
covered by surface excavations,
workings, impoundments, dams,
ventilation shafts, entryways, refuse
banks, dumps, stockpiles, overburden
piles, spoil banks, culm banks, tailings,
holes or depressions, repair areas,
storage areas, shipping areas; any areas
upon which are sited structures, facilities,
or other property materiai on the surface
resulting from, or incident to, surface coal
mining and reclamation operations; and
the area located above underground
workings. The affected area shall include
every road used for purposes of access
to, or for hauling coal to or from, surface
coal mining and reclamation operations,
unless the road (a) was designated as a
public road pursuant to the laws of the
jurisdiction in which it is located; (b) is
maintained with public funds, and
constructed, in a manner similar to other
public roads of the same classification
within the jurisdiction; and (c) there is
substantial (more than incidental) public
use.

Utah Coal Mining and Reclamation Act
Utah Admin. B. 614-100-200: Definitions

Public Road means a road (a) which has
been designated as a public road pursuant:
to the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is
located, (b) which is maintained with pubiic
funds in a manner similar to other public
roads of the same classification within the
jurisdiction, and (c) which meets road
construction standards for other public
roads of the same classification in the local

jurisdiction.
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Road means a surface right-of-way

for purposes of travel by land vehicles
used in surface coal mining and
reclamation operations or coal
exploration. A road consists of the entire
area within the right-of-way, including the
roadbed, shoulders, parking and side
areas, approaches, structures, ditches
and surface. The term includes access
and haul roads constructed, used,
reconstructed, improved, or maintained
for use in surface coal mining and
reclamation operations or coal
exﬁloration, including use by coal hauling
vehicles to and from transfer, processing,
or storage areas. The term does not
include ramps and routes of travel within
the immediate mining area or within spoil
or coal mine waste disposal areas.

Road means a surface right-of-way for
purposes of travel by land vehicles used in
coal exploration or coal mining and
reclamation operations. a road consists oaf
the entire area within the right-of-way
including the roadbed, shoulders, parking
and side areas, approaches, structures,
ditches, and surface. The term includes
access and haul roads constructed, used,
reconstructed, improved, or maintained for
use in coal exploration, or within the
affected area of coal mining and
reciamation operations, including use by
coal hauling vehicles leading to transfer,
processing, or storage areas. The term
does not include roads within the immediate
mining-pit area and may not include public
roads as determined on a site specific basis.
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ATTACHMENT 3

"Public Road"” means a road (a) which has been designated as a public road pursuant
to the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is located, (b) which is maintained with public
funds in a manner similar to other public roads of the same classification within the
jurisdiction, {e) for which there is-substantiat {more than incidental) public uss), and
() (c) which meets road construction standards for other public roads of the same
classification in the local jurisdiction.

"Road" means a surface right-of-way for purposes of travel by land vehicles used in
coal exploration or coal mining and reclamation operations. A road consists of the
entire area within the right-of-way including the roadbed, shoulders, parking and side
areas, approaches, structures, ditches, and surface. The term includes access and
haul roads constructed, used, reconstructed, improved, or maintained for use in coal
exploration, or within ihe affected area of coal mining and reclamation operations,
including use by coal hauling vehicles leading to transfer, processing, or storage
areas. The tem does not include roads within the immediate mining-pit area and may

pot include public roads as determined on 4 site specific basis.
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V) { DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Norman H. - 4 DIVISION OF OIL, GAS AND MINING , o //
Governor : . 0
DeeC. 2 355 Wea North Telmple SRR Yy
Executive Director ¢ © 1iad Center, Suite 350 } )
Dianne R. Nielson, Ph.D, | Sait Lake City, Utah 84180-1203 LN

Division Director © _801-538-5340

March 28, 1991

CERTIFIED RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
No. P 540 714 145

ivir. Blake Webster, Permitting Administrator
PacifiCorp Electric Operations

P. O. Box 26128

Sait Lake City, Utah 84126-0128

Qsre

Dear Mr. Webster:

Re: _Cp_t_t_ nwoodNViIberg, PacifiCorp Electric Operations, ACT/015/019, Emery County,

C
'.3'

Effective February 25, 1991,the Board of Qil, Gas and Mmmg adopted emergency
rules dealing with the definition of "Public Road” and "Road.” These terms as defined
in the emergency rulemaking are:

"Public Road" means a road, (a) which has been designated as a public road
pursuant to the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is located, (b) which is maintained
with public funds in a manner similar to other public roads of the same
classification within the‘]urisdic’tion, and (c) which meets road construction
standards for other public roads of the same classification in the local jurisdiction.

"Road" means a surface right-of-way for purposes of travel by land vehicles used
in coal exploration or coal mining and reclamation operations. A road consists of
the entire area within the right-of-way including the roadbed, shoulders, parking
and side areas, approaches, structures, ditches and surface. The term includes
access and haul roads constructed, used, reconstructed, improved or maintained
for use in coal exploration, or within the affected areas of coal mining and
reclamation operations, including use by coal hauling vehicles leading to -
processing or storage areas. The term does not include roads within the
immediate mining-pit area and may not inciude public roads as determined on a
site specific basis.

In order to make a finding that a road is a "public road” and not permittable under
the Utah Coal Regulatory Program, DOGM must conduct a site-specific analysis of
roads leading to permitted sites. | am asking for information on Highway 57 between
Highway 29 and the Cottonwood/Wilberg Mine, crossing portions of Section 27, 34 and
35, Township 17 South, Range 7 East and portions of Sections 2, 11 and 14, Township
18 South, Range 7 East, SLBM.

an equai opportunity empiover

| State mf Litan /f"‘“ N

e



Page 2
Mr. Blake Webster
March 28, 1991

In order to facilitate this analysis, you will need to secure a signed letter from
Emery County discussing the following topics:

1. The above-referenced road is /is not a public road pursuant to the laws of
that jurisdiction.

2. Designation of a public road:
a. When was the designation first established?
b. In which governmental system is the road included?

c. How is it classified within the public road system, and are there similar
roads within the jurisdiction?

3.  What public funds have been expended in maintaining the road for the
following years:

a. 1990
b. 1989
c. 1988

4. How maintenance expenditures compare with other public roads of the same
classification within the jurisciction?

5. How construction standards for this road compare with roads of similar
classification within the jurisdiction?

6. Whether PacifiCorp Electric Operations has the ability to deny public access
to any of this road?

Please provide the requested information within 60 days of receipt of this letter.
If you have questions concerning the above process, please feel free to calil
Lowell Braxton or Ron Daniels.

Sincereiy,

Lowell P. Braxton
Associate Director, Mining

vb
cc: D. Nielson

R. Daniels
MI78/82&83
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|Starc™f Teah

UTAH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Samuel J. Taylor
Chairman

/7 g -

K , Q2 ] "7 Wayne S. Winters

: Lf ’I Ay 3 0 J : Q;C*ﬁaimfm

Route #3 Box 75C5 ,‘ B John T. Dunlop
1991

4 940 South Carbon Avenue { Todd G. Weston

: i Price. Utan 84501 ‘V? y 199 1 : James G. Larkin

Steve R. Noble (801) 837-1100 may 24, L E? SUP Elva H. Anderson

District Four Director | (801) 637-9538 (Fax) 'u’z 3£ 4;‘ Secretary
Staztze o4 Uzxan e

Divisdion o4 OLL, Gas and Mining
Lowell P. Eraxton

355 West Noratin Temple

3 Triad Centznr, Suitzs 350

Salt Lake City, Utan 84130-1203

RE: Cozxtonwood/Wilberg, Pacipiclorp Elecitric Cperatiocons,
ACT/015/012, Emery County., Uzan

Dear Sinrs,

In response o yourn reguest 24 PacisiclConrpn, tihe jpollowding
Lnpormation 435 provided:

1. The above aeéea-ncad roadway 4is 4 Statz hignwey, Roule
57.
2. I+ was designed a State Route on Octokber 15, 1932, Iz

45 a U.D.Q.T. SzZatz Faderal Aid Secondary. Therz are
ofher roads with similar designations.

3. Variows maintenance activities have bHezn provided o
this route withh an average o4 £50,000.00 z2xpendad
annuatiy.

4, These mointanance axpendiiturzss are averase wlth This
T~ U syl

3. It was construcitad o U.D.0.7. and ALA.S.H.T.O0.
Seccondanry 2o standards

5. No agency, Fzderal on Szate, szner than U.D.0.7. ol

authority over This rocdway and Aight-ch-way.

Asst., Distrnict Directon

cc: D, Niglsonm
R. Danieis
J. Blake Websien
Dixie Thompson
Stave Noblsz
Foward Richardson
Rex Funk
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DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

. - @
.- @ State of Utah
orman B, pongeene | DIVISION OF OIL, GAS AND MINING

" J 385 Wast Nons Tempie
QZ&Muw 3 Triad Canter, Sulte 350
Disrwe R Nelson, Ph.D, [| SakLake Chy, Utah 84180-1203

Division Directwr 801-538-5340

April 28, 1991

W. Hord Tipton

Deputy Director

Office of Surface Hining
Department of the Interjor
1951 Constitution Avenue NW
Washington D.C. 20240

Dear Mr. Tipton:

Re; Appeals cof Ten-Day Notice Responses

IDN 81-02-~2486-2 TV2, Cranda a

n Mine

LM__
TDN 91-02-116-~3 TVI, cOtgonwood[ﬂilhgxg Mine
EQ_.2__Q3_2iQ_LJEZLLJ&aQL£ZESL_Min_

N _91-02-246=

The purpose of this letter is to

e

appeal the inappropriate

responses by OSM-Albuquerque to the above-referenced IDNs which
have been issued to the Division. The initial Divisien response

to the TDNs and AFO's responses to th
Also attached is 0sM's April 13, 1991

The .Division hereby requests tha

e Division are attached,
letter regarding roads.

t you vacate the TDNs and

forego any further TDNs regarding permitting of roads until the
state and OSM have completed their review and approval decisions

concerning rulemaking/program amendme

nts. The justification for

this recommendation is presented in the initial responses from
the Division (attached) and the following reaction to the AFO's

responses.

i. The AFO's misinterpretation
on haul roads in Utah is 4i
borders on dishonest.

2. AFQO assumes that the Divisi
decisions regarding roads.
The purpose of the state ru
authority and information f

3. AFO was informed by the Div
draft roads poliey which it
1991 letter was not the sam

of the status of the record
singemious at best and

on has already made

This is simply not true,
lemaking is to provide
or such reviews.

ision in March that the
reviewed in its March 5,
e policy which was

referenced in the state!s rulemaking. AFO had been

sent a copy of the final po

licy and proposed rule. Bob

Hagen informed me that he was aware of the Qistinction

an equal cppenunity employer
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Hord Tipton
o April 29, 1991

1sj
cc:

DN3

4.

between the draft and final policies and that any
comments on the final policy would be reserved for the
progran amendment review., However, AFO continues to
reference the draft policy and its March 5, 1991 letter

rather than the final policy. There are important
differences.

The Division has not categorically excluded public
roads from permitting.

The Board's emergency rule puts the state in compliance
with its own rules and statutes and allows the Division
to make the requests for information which are
necessary to evaluate the roads in question.

The Division can take no other action in response to
the TDNs until the rulemaking/program amendment process
is complete. Furthermore, 0SM has received comment
from more than one respondent to the program amendment,
stating that any road permitting actions taken by the
Division during the term of the energency rulemaking.
should be overturned. This should extend to TDN '
responses.

Thank you for your consideration of thesa concerns.

]

v

est regards,
$

Dianne R. Nielson
Director

R, Hagen
T. Mitchell

L.
R.

Braxton
Danlels
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o TAKE Se— -
United States Department of the Interior i m—
OFFICE OF SURFACE MINING
Reclamation and Enforcement — ] l;
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240 -
JUN- 4 199

I bk bt om b =

Dianne R. Nielson, Ph.D.

Director, Division of 0il, Gas, JUN 2 0 199
and Mining

3 Triad Center, Suite 350

355 West North Temple

Salt Lake City, Utah 84180-1203

Dear Dr. Nielson:

This is in response to your April 29, 1991, request for informal
review of the Albuquerque Field Office (AFO) Director’s
determination that your agency has not taken appropriate action
or shown good cause for not taking appropriate action with
respect to ten-day notice (TDN) numbers 91-02-116-003 (PacifiCorp
.Electric’s Cottonwood/Wilberg Mine) and 91-02-246-001 (Deer Creek
Mine, respectively). The ten-day notices allege that the
permittee failed to first obtain a permit from your agency prior
to engaging in and carrying out any coal mining and reclamation
operations, in accordance with Utah regulations at R614-300-
112.400. The surface coal mining and reclamation operations in
question pertain to haul and access roads.

In your request for review, you ask that I vacate the TDN’s
because your agency can take no further action in response to the
TDN’s until your pending program amendment concerning new
definitions of "road" and "public road" is finalized by the
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement. You
maintain that approval of this proposed amendment is necessary
before your agency can request information needed to evaluate the
roads in question. Finally. yvou contend that issuance of the
TDN’s so soon after promulgation of emergency rulemaking and
submission of the program amendment denies your agency reasonable
time in which to manage and enforce its program.

Notwithstanding your proposed program amendment, I cannot vacate
the TDN’s since I am charged by regulation to dispose of each TDN
appeal before me by affirming, reversing, or modifying the
written determination of the Field Office Director based on the
facts surrounding the alleged violation(s). Moreover, I cannot
agree with your argument that your agency is without authority
under the approved Utah program to make a determination whether
the roads in question need to be permitted.

The determination of whether a particular road associated with a
mining operation is required to be permitted must be made on a
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case-by-case basis by the regulatory authority relying on the
plain language of the State program counterpart to the definition
of "surface coal mining operations" under section 701(28) (B) of
the Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act (SMCRA). The Utah
counterpart at 40-10-3.(18) (b) is identical to the definition in
section 701(28) (B) of SMCRA. Both definitions specifically state
that surface coal mining operations include "all lands affected
by the construction of new roads or the improvement or use of

existing roads to gain access to the site of such activities and
for haulage...."®

In applying the Utah definition to the instant cases, I
considered all available facts in the record such as the purpose
of construction, who constructed the roads, the relationship of
the roads to the existing public road system, the current use of
the roads, and the reconstruction, improvement, and maintenance
of the roads. 1In the case of the Cottonwood/Wilberg Road (State
Highway 57), the record shows that State Highway 57 was
engineered and constructed in 1977-1978 for the purpose of
facilitating coal haulage from the mine to the Hunter Preparation
Plant, and was paid for by the coal company and secondary
revenues. Surfacing improvements were made in 1987 and 1989 due
to the impacts of haulage by the primary user, the coal company.
These improvements were financed through a surcharge tax to the
State by mineral developers. Use of the S-mile stretch above the
State Highway 29 intersection is almost exclusively for coal
haulage and access to the mine, and while the 8-mile stretch from
State Highway 29 south to the Hunter Preparation Plant receives
light use from local farming, recreation, and power plant
activities, its predominant use remains coal haulage from the
mine to the power plant.

In the case of the Deer Creek Road (Emery County Road No. 3-04),
the record shows that the road begins at State Highway 31, passes
the entrance to the Huntington Power Plant, continues 0.6 miles
to the permit boundary, and then continues another 1 mile within
the permit boundary to the Deer Creek Mine gate where the road
dead ends. County Road 3-04 was reconstructed with asphalt in
1989-1990 due to deterioration from the primary user, the coal
company. This reconstruction was paid for by a surcharge tax on
mineral developers to the State, which reallocated funds to the
county. Further, the 0.6 miles of the road addressed in the TDN
is used almost exclusively for mine-related activities, and
according to the county road authority, the Deer Creek Mine is
considered the primary user of the road.

Based on the foregoing facts, and in the absence of any specific
information provided by your agency which would demonstrate that
the roads do not fall within the definition of "surface coal
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mining operations,™ I find that both roads are within the .
jurisdictional reach of the Utah program. Accordingly, I hereby
affirm the determination of the Albuquerque Field Office Director
and order a Federal inspection. That inspection will address the
need to revise the permits to include the roads referenced in the
ten-day notices.

cc:

Sincerely,

W. Hord Tipton

W. Hord Tipton
Deputy Director
Operations and Technical Services

PacificCo Electric
324 S. State Street
Salt Lake City, Utah 84124

Robert H. Hagen
Director, Albuquerque Field Office

Nina Rose Hatfield
Assistant Deputy Director
Operations and Technical Services

Carl C. Close
Assistant Director, Eastern Support Center

Raymond Lowrie
Assistant Director, Western Support Center

Joel Yudson
Assistant Solicitor, Regulatory Programs
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& State oF Utah

Norman . Bangerter

June 19, 1991

Harry Snyder, Director

Office of Surface Mining

1951 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washindton, D.C. 20240

Dear, r:

The purpose of this letter is to formally record with the
Office of Surface Mining (OSM) the state protest of the Hord-
Tipton denial of Utah's informal appeals requesting vacation of
TDN 91-02-246-002 (Genwal Mine), TDN 91-02-116-003 (Cottonwood/
Wilberg Mine), and TDN 91-02-246-001 (Deer Creek Mine). These
TDNs were issued by the Albuquerque Field Office for failure to
permit roads. The information concerning these TDNs and their
informal appeals should be available in the Washington Office.
However, should it not be available, please notify me, and I will
immediately see that copies of the necessary information are
supplied.

This protest of the issuance of the TDNs and Hord Tipton's
reaffirmation is based on the following facts:

1. The Tipton response criticized the Division for failing to
provide any additional information regarding the subject
roads. However, the Division's appeals in all three cases
were based on the fact that 0OSM was preempting the state's
enforcement of its regqulatory program. Therefore, the
state's appeals were not directed to specific data
concerning the individual roads.

2. The data which was provided by OSM in Hord Tipton's
responses to the appeals and which formed the basis for his
denial of. the appeals, are incomplete and inaccurate.

3. The Tipton response implies that permit decisions were never

made on the subject roa“_.. In fact, all three mi-es are
federal mines, and OSM .issued a permit separate and distinct

an egual opportunity empioyer
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from that issued by Utah for each mine. In each case, at
the time of initial permit issuance and rénewal, OSM either
determined or concurred with the Division determination that
each road is a public road not subject to permlttlng Since
that time, OSM has failed to define changes in its
regulations or the state program which would support
issuance of a notice of violation in contradiction to the
original findings.

The state has continued to attempt to establish rules
revisions and criteria which would form a basis for review
of -the initial permit determinations for these and other
public roads. This process has been preempted by OSM's
TDNs.

The criteria which the Tipton review cites for roads
determinations have not been legally available for reviewing
prev1ous public roads permit decisions due to delays by. OsSM
in approval of program amendments.

Utah's program includes definitions of "affected area",
"roads", and "public roads." The definitions are nested
such that "affected area" includes the term "roads," and
"roads" includes the term "public roads." The criteria set
forth in the Tipton response are included in the definition

of "publlc road." However, OSM has failed to approve or
disapprove the state's definition of "roads", although the
program amendment has been before OSM since last fall.
Absent a definition of "road", there is no operational
connection between the definitions of "affected area" and
"public roads." Therefore, the state has had no way to
legally use "public roads" criteria to reevaluate the permit
status of public roads.

The issuance of TDNs has heightened the conflict while
preempting the state's authority to conduct case-by-case
reviews of prior permit decisions which were originally made
by or endorsed by OSM. A vacation of these TDNs will not
preclude OSM's review of the Division's roads determinations
during oversight.
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Preemption of the state's enforcement of its regulatory
program is an important issue, one which is fundamental to the
concept of state primacy. Thank you for your consideration of
this protest by the State of Utah.

Best regards,

- a

Dianne R. Nielson
Director

kak

cc: H. Tipton
R. Hagen
T. Mitchell
L. Braxton

Nevada Electric Investment Company
PacifiCorp }
DN91





